
 
VILLAGE of LAWTON 

VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

125 S. MAIN STREET, LAWTON, MI 49065 

TUESDAY, August 9, 2022 – 7:00 P.M. 
please silence your cell phones 

 
AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of the August 9, 2022 Council Agenda 
 

B. Approval of the July 12, 2022 Council Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Approval of July 2022 Disbursements in the amount of $155,800.04 
 

V. COMMUNICATIONS / CORRESPONDENCE / PRESENTATIONS 
 

VI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS – (Please keep comments to 3 minutes) 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS / APPOINTMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS 
 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Consideration of Resolution 13-22 A Resolution approving the traffic control order #02-

22 authorizing “No Stopping, standing, or parking” signs between the hours of 7:30 AM 
and 3:30 PM on school days on the North side of E. Second Street from Nursery Street to 
Quincy Street…….......................................................…….....Staff Recommend Approval 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Comcast Internet Service Contract..................................................................Discussion 

 
B. 2021 – 2022 Audit Review.................................................................................Discussion 
 

 



 
 

X. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Village Manager – Lisa Imus 

B. Village Clerk – Brittany Rathbun 

C. Department of Public Works – Todd Hackenberg 
 

D. Police Department – Jeff Mack 
 

E. Planning Commission – Judy Peterson 
 
F. Downtown Development Authority – Gail Dudek 
 
G. Lawton Fire Board – Eric Dudek 

 
H. Lawton Library Board – Brittany Rathbun  
 

XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT - NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – September 13, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Village of Lawton follows the Americans w/ Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities planning to attend this 
meeting and require accommodations, or those who have questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or the facilities, are 
requested to contact the Village Clerk, at (269) 624-6407 or brathbun@lawtonmi.org to allow the Village to make reasonable 
accommodations. If you have questions or comments, and you are unable to make the meeting, forward to the Village Manager at 
imusl@lawtonmi.gov. 

 
Posted August 5, 2022, for the VILLAGE OF LAWTON in VAN BUREN COUNTY, MICHIGAN www.lawtonmi.gov 

269.624.6407 

mailto:brathbun@lawtonmi.org
mailto:imusl@lawtonmi.gov
http://www.lawtonmi.gov/


VILLAGE OF LAWTON 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Tuesday July 12, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

Village Hall – 125 S. Main Street, Lawton MI 49065 
WWW.LAWTONMI.GOV  269.624.6407 

  
MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER: President Appleby called the July 12 2022, meeting of the Lawton Village 
Council to order at 7:01 p.m. 

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

III. ROLL CALL: Present: President Appleby. Trustees: Tanis, Smith, Turner, E. Dudek, G. Dudek, 
Peterson, Turner Others present: Village Manager Imus, Village Clerk Rathbun, Library Director 
Tone, and Superintendent Hackenberg, Library Director Tone, and 5 guests. 

 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA: The Consent Agenda included the approval of the June 14 and June 28 

Council Meeting Minutes, approval of the July 12, 2022 Council Agenda, and approval of the 
June 2022 disbursements in the amount of $171,456.59, with addition of repair request from 
Hackenberg.  Peterson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, supported by E. 
Dudek Smith.  A unanimous roll call vote approved the motion. 

 
V. COMMUNICATIONS, CORRESPONDENCE AND PRESENTATIONS:  Imus provided information about 

Senator Nesbitt providing an earmark for the village of Lawton’s Water and sewer expenses.  

President Appleby reported that the village received two awards, one for Economic Development 

within the county, and one for being the Municipal Trailblazer in regards to the Master Plan, 

grants, and downtown streetscape.  

VI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS: Heather mentioned that Summerfest was overall a success, but there 
were a few community concerns for events regarding the amount of police presence. She 
stated next year the Summerfest Committee will need more volunteers, as well as a better 
police presence to keep things under control.  There was a lot of concern about open 
container drinking throughout the day and evening.  She stated we need a better police 
presence, with reserves, because of the amount of public drinking, as well as restaurants to 
work with the committee to state the rules that there is no drinking on the street, and we do 
not have a Social District, and signs up next year to avoid the issues.  
 
Library Director Tone brought up that the Library has a lot of Summer Programming, including 
a juggler tomorrow at 3pm. She stated each program has had at least 75 participants so far 
and its been a big hit.  
 
Matt Nelson provided some information about himself, as he is running in the primary to 

http://www.lawtonmi.gov/


replace Beth Griffin once her term is finished.  He introduced himself, wanted to explain why 
he wants to run, and how he would like to help the community.   

 
VII. EXISTING BUSINESS: 

A. Village Manager Imus recommended consideration of Resolution 16-22, a resolution 
approving the conversion of Union Street to a one-way between M-40 and West Street.  
In order to bring the resolution to the floor, Turner made a motion to approve this 
Resolution, supported by Smith.  Council discussion ensued about how the village can get 
this done, as it will be switched to a one way once the streetscape is redone anyway, so 
this may be better to have people get used to the change.  MDOT will need to approve 
this, so Superintendent Hackenberg will contact MDOT to find out what we would need 
to do.  Voice vote was taken, all in favor, none opposed, motion carried.  

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Village manager Imus recommended Consideration of Ordinance 203 of 2022, an 
ordinance to authorize the sale of the village owned real property. E. Dudek motioned 
and Smith seconded to adopt Ordinance 203 to authorize the sale of the village owned 
real property.  A roll call vote was taken, all in favor, none opposed.  Ordinance passed. 

B. Manager Imus recommended Consideration of Resolution 15-22, a resolution granting 
the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) consent to grade Village property.  
Turner motioned to adopt Resolution 15-22 to grant MDOT consent to grade Village 
property.  G. Dudek supported motion, voice vote taken, all in favor, none opposed.  
Motion carried.  

C. Superintendent Hackenberg reported that the village has a truck and trailer that needs to 
be fixed, with repair amount estimated at $9,990.  Peterson moved to approve the repair 
of Village Truck 102 the 1999 International Dump truck for the amount not to exceed 
$11,000 total.  Support from Turner, all in favor none opposed. Motion carried.  
 

IX. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS:  

A. Imus reported that the farmers market is going to move to the Reid Property between 
Wagoner’s and Big T’s.  She reported that the parking lot next to Modern Well could 
has potential to be sold to Modern Well with repair rather than leased.  Imus also 
reported that Welch’s has not yet signed the IFT, we are still waiting on a reply from 
them.  The next contract for the DPW Union meeting is on July 27th.  The village is 
looking to close on the Reid property in Mid-August, we do currently have a lease to 
purchase.  The grant award announcements in regards to the streetscape and water 
and sewer connections will be on July 26 and 27th.  In August the village will be doing 
a budget amendment, by beginning of August, she is hopeful we should know what we 
are receiving for our personal property taxes.  Imus reported that we did receive the 
estimates back for the Pickleball Courts, which came out over budget, so we are still in 
the bidding process.  Imus reported we need a water and sewer committee meeting.   

B. Rathbun reported emails and text messages are subject to FOIA, so following a 
retention schedule is important.  

C. Hackenberg reported the splash pad has been cleaned twice.  The Waste Water 



Treatment plant did PFOS test to see what the levels are at.  This is the first year that 
this is being tested, no issues are expected.  White Oak Road house is scheduled to be 
disconnected and demolition to follow.  He confirmed that the White Oak Road project 
can be bid out in 2024 and budgeted in 2025 to ensure reconstruction after MDOT’s 
detour. Water tower inspection and cleaning is scheduled to be completed between 
July 18-22.  Hackenberg reported to the council that the 2006 water truck will need to 
be replaced in the next budget year, and there is a 10-12-month lead time. The 
replacement cost on this truck is $80,000.  Hackenberg also included a report for the 
past three years of water production, and a list of vehicles and equipment.  

D. Police Department reports were submitted via the agenda packet posted online.  
E. Peterson reported that the Planning Commission met in July with a quorum to discuss 

a Master Plan and zoning changes.  
F. G. Dudek reported that the Downtown Development Authority did not meet. Dunk 

Tank made about $180.  
G. E. Dudek reported that the Fire Department had a relatively slow month.  They had a 

memorial service for Croenwett.    
H. Tone reported that the Library Board met, and there are more people signed up for 

the summer reading program than we have ever had before. Biggby and the Modern 
Well have donated prizes.  

 
X. COUNCIL COMMENTS: Smith reported the Little League fields are putting in a new T-Ball 

field and removing trees.  Imus reported that a police committee meeting as well as a water 
and sewer committee meeting are needed for the near future.  The village council will meet 
for committee of the whole meeting Tuesday August 9, 2022 at 5:30 pm.   

XI. ADJOURNMENT: E. Dudek supported by Turner , made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 
p.m. A voice vote was taken with unanimous approval of those present. The next Village 
Council Meeting will take place on August 9, 2022 at 7pm.  

 

Respectfully Submitted by 

 

 

 Brittany Rathbun, Lawton Village Clerk 

 



0
8

/0
3

/2
0

2
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 C
H

EC
K

 R
EG

IS
TE

R
 F

O
R

 V
IL

LA
G

E 
O

F 
LA

W
TO

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 C

H
EC

K
 D

A
TE

 F
R

O
M

 0
7

/0
1

/2
0

2
2

 -
 0

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
h

e
ck

 D
at

e
B

an
k

C
h

e
ck

A
p

p
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

am
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
A

m
o

u
n

t

B
an

k 
G

EN
 G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
H

EC
K

IN
G

0
7

/0
8

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
1

A
P

V
IL

LA
G

E 
O

F 
LA

W
TO

N
P

ET
TY

 C
A

SH
 F

O
R

 S
U

M
M

ER
FE

ST
 -

 D
D

A
 D

U
N

K
 T

A
N

3
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
3

A
P

A
LA

N
 S

M
IT

H
M

A
G

IC
 S

H
O

W
4

2
5

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
4

A
P

A
P

P
LI

ED
 IM

A
G

IN
G

LI
B

R
A

R
Y 

C
O

P
IE

R
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

N
O

 C
N

3
5

9
9

-0
1

 -
 A

1
5

5
.9

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
5

A
P

B
A

K
ER

 &
 T

A
YL

O
R

, I
N

C
.

B
O

O
K

1
,3

4
0

.9
5

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
6

A
P

V
O

ID
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
7

A
P

B
EN

ZI
E 

SH
O

R
ES

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
M

EL
C

A
T 

D
A

M
A

G
ED

 IT
EM

 -
 Z

O
D

IA
K

 K
IL

LE
R

1
8

.9
9

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
8

A
P

B
ET

H
 T

R
O

X
EL

L
M

IL
EA

G
E

4
7

.5
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

0
9

A
P

B
LO

O
M

IN
G

D
A

LE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S
P

H
O

N
E 

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

1
6

2
.7

8

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
0

A
P

C
EN

G
A

G
E 

LE
A

R
N

IN
G

.
JU

LY
 M

YS
TE

R
Y 

2
 P

LA
N

1
6

4
.3

9

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
1

A
P

C
LA

R
K

 T
EC

H
N

IC
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

LP
L 

2
0

2
2

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
3

9
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
2

A
P

EB
SC

O
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 S

ER
V

IC
E

LI
B

R
A

R
Y 

JO
U

R
N

A
LS

6
3

5
.8

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
3

A
P

K
A

LA
M

A
ZO

O
 N

A
TU

R
E 

C
EN

TE
R

A
N

IM
A

L 
A

M
B

A
SS

A
D

O
R

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
3

5
5

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
4

A
P

O
TC

 B
R

A
N

D
S,

 IN
C

R
IN

G
 T

O
SS

 G
A

M
E,

 B
A

G
S,

 F
IS

H
 O

N
 A

 S
TR

IN
G

, 
1

2
5

.0
3

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
5

A
P

P
ET

TY
 C

A
SH

 L
A

W
TO

N
 P

U
B

LI
C

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

M
C

D
O

N
A

LD
S

7
.6

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
6

A
P

R
O

C
H

ES
TE

R
 H

IL
LS

 P
U

B
LI

C
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
IT

EM
 D

A
M

A
G

ED
 M

EL
C

A
T 

- 
A

 D
A

Y 
LI

K
E 

TH
IS

 
1

9
.9

5

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
7

A
P

SY
N

C
B

/A
M

A
ZO

N
B

O
O

K
1

3
.0

5

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
8

A
P

U
N

IQ
U

E
0

6
-1

3
 P

LA
C

EM
EN

TS
9

.9
5

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

1
9

A
P

A
D

A
M

S 
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
C

O
N

SO
LI

D
A

TE
D

 B
IL

L
1

,1
9

1
.7

8

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
0

A
P

A
D

V
A

N
C

E 
P

ES
T 

C
O

N
TR

O
L

EA
R

W
IG

S 
SP

R
A

Y 
A

T 
W

EL
L 

H
O

U
SE

S
2

0
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
1

A
P

A
N

TW
ER

P
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 T

R
EA

SU
R

ER
1

1
9

 N
 M

A
IN

 S
T 

- 
R

A
YM

O
N

D
 R

EI
D

 P
R

O
P

ER
TY

4
1

7
.2

3

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
2

A
P

A
Q

U
A

-A
ER

O
B

IC
 S

YS
TE

M
S,

 IN
C

D
EC

A
N

TE
R

 B
A

SE
 F

R
A

M
E 

W
EL

D
M

EN
T

2
,4

8
5

.3
5

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
3

A
P

B
A

D
G

ER
 M

ET
ER

, I
N

C
B

EA
C

O
N

 M
B

L 
H

O
SS

TI
N

G
 S

ER
V

 U
N

IT
3

9
.9

1

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
4

A
P

B
EN

 W
. J

O
H

N
SO

N
JU

N
E 

2
0

2
2

 C
LE

A
N

IN
G

 X
5

4
7

5
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
5

A
P

B
LO

O
M

IN
G

D
A

LE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S
TE

LE
P

H
O

N
E 

FO
R

 A
C

C
T 

N
O

 0
0

3
2

5
1

5
-9

3
3

4
.8

6

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
6

A
P

B
R

IT
TA

N
Y 

D
EU

TS
C

H
P

A
R

K
 D

EP
O

SI
T 

R
EF

U
N

D
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
7

A
P

C
LA

R
K

 T
EC

H
N

IC
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
ES

V
O

L 
2

0
2

1
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

2
,2

9
5

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
8

A
P

V
O

ID
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

2
9

A
P

C
O

N
SU

M
ER

S 
EN

ER
G

Y
H

EA
T 

FO
R

 A
C

C
T 

N
O

 1
0

0
0

 0
7

1
0

 3
9

0
4

 2
0

2
 J

A
M

E
6

3
.6

4

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
0

A
P

C
O

U
R

IE
R

-L
EA

D
ER

 &
 F

LA
SH

ES
TR

U
TH

 IN
 T

A
X

A
TI

O
N

3
4

4
.0

0
V

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
1

A
P

D
A

V
E 

LI
N

D
SE

Y
P

A
R

K
 D

EP
O

SI
T 

R
EF

U
N

D
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
2

A
P

D
ES

TI
N

EE
 W

A
D

K
IN

S
P

A
R

K
 D

EP
O

SI
T 

R
EF

U
N

D
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
3

A
P

G
R

A
IN

G
ER

A
C

C
T 

N
O

 8
5

3
9

7
9

9
8

9
 -

 M
O

TO
R

5
2

7
.2

6

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
4

A
P

H
A

A
S 

SY
ST

EM
S,

 IN
C

.
Q

U
A

R
TL

Y 
A

LA
R

M
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 P

ER
 A

G
R

EE
M

EN
T 

W
9

6
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
5

A
P

H
A

R
M

O
N

 G
LA

SS
 D

O
C

TO
R

2
0

2
0

FO
R

D
 4

D
O

O
R

 -
 W

IN
D

SH
IE

LD
 

7
0

4
.4

8

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
6

A
P

IN
D

IA
N

A
 M

IC
H

IG
A

N
 P

O
W

ER
 C

O
.

EL
EC

TR
IC

7
,2

0
4

.0
2

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
7

A
P

JE
FF

 N
O

R
R

IS
P

A
R

K
 D

EP
O

SI
T 

R
EF

U
N

D
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
8

A
P

JO
D

Y 
TE

A
G

U
E

P
A

R
K

 D
EP

O
SI

T 
R

EF
U

N
D

5
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

3
9

A
P

LA
W

SO
N

 O
IL

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
P

D
F

2
5

7
.9

5



0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
0

A
P

M
EE

K
H

O
F 

TI
R

E 
O

F 
K

ZO
O

ST
EE

R
 T

IR
ES

, L
A

B
O

R
 

8
3

5
.2

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
1

A
P

M
EN

A
R

D
S

C
A

U
TI

O
N

 T
A

P
E,

 S
TA

C
K

IN
G

 T
O

O
L

2
5

2
.3

3

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
2

A
P

N
C

L 
O

F 
W

IS
C

O
N

SI
N

, I
N

C
.

TE
ST

 T
U

B
ES

, E
YE

 D
R

O
P

P
ER

1
6

3
.1

9

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
3

A
P

O
D

P
 B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
SO

LU
TI

O
N

S 
P

R
O

TE
C

TO
R

 S
H

EE
TS

, T
O

N
ER

, N
O

TE
P

A
D

S
2

3
3

.9
1

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
4

A
P

P
EE

R
LE

SS
 M

ID
W

ES
T,

 IN
C

.
TR

O
U

B
LE

SH
O

O
TI

N
G

 O
N

 W
EL

L 
4

1
,1

2
5

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
5

A
P

P
U

R
IT

Y 
C

YL
IN

D
ER

 G
A

SE
S,

 IN
C

.
G

A
S,

 A
C

ET
YL

EN
E

8
7

.1
2

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
6

A
P

R
EP

U
B

LI
C

  S
ER

V
IC

ES
 O

F
W

A
ST

E 
R

EM
O

V
A

L
6

9
4

.7
9

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
7

A
P

R
O

B
ER

T 
FR

ER
ID

G
E

P
A

R
K

 D
EP

O
SI

T 
R

EF
U

N
D

5
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
8

A
P

R
U

TH
 G

A
R

C
IA

P
A

R
K

 D
EP

O
SI

T 
R

EF
U

N
D

5
0

.0
0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

4
9

A
P

SA
R

A
H

 C
A

U
LD

ER
P

A
R

K
 D

EP
O

SI
T 

R
EF

U
N

D
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
0

A
P

SI
EG

FR
IE

D
 C

R
A

N
D

A
LL

, P
.C

.
P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

B
IL

LI
N

G
 O

N
 A

U
D

IT
IN

G
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 F
O

1
3

,7
5

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
1

A
P

SP
IK

E'
S 

SE
R

V
IC

E
M

O
U

N
T 

&
 B

A
LA

N
C

E 
TI

R
ES

1
4

0
.0

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
2

A
P

U
SA

 B
LU

E 
B

O
O

K
SU

LF
U

R
IC

 A
C

ID
5

0
1

.0
1

V

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
3

A
P

V
A

N
 B

U
R

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

V
ER

IZ
O

N
 A

IR
C

A
R

D
 -

 A
P

R
IL

 A
N

D
 M

A
Y

1
6

0
.2

0

0
7

/1
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
4

A
P

V
IL

LA
G

E 
O

F 
P

A
W

 P
A

W
W

A
TE

R
 L

A
B

 A
N

A
LY

SI
S

1
8

0
.0

0

0
7

/2
5

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
5

P
R

0
.0

0

0
7

/2
5

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
6

P
R

0
.0

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
8

A
P

V
O

ID
0

.0
0

V

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

5
9

A
P

A
N

TW
ER

P
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 T

R
EA

SU
R

ER
1

1
6

 D
U

R
K

EE
 S

T 
TA

X
1

,8
9

5
.1

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
0

A
P

B
EN

 W
. J

O
H

N
SO

N
JU

LY
 2

0
2

2
 C

LE
A

N
IN

G
 X

4
3

8
0

.0
0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
1

A
P

D
IC

K
IN

SO
N

 W
R

IG
H

T 
P

LL
C

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

2
6

0
.0

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
2

A
P

FR
O

N
TI

ER
TE

LE
P

H
O

N
E 

A
N

D
 IN

TE
R

N
ET

 F
O

R
 D

P
W

 A
N

D
 W

W
TP

6
2

8
.0

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
3

A
P

J.
C

. &
 S

O
N

S,
 IN

C
.

R
EM

O
V

A
L 

O
F 

ST
O

R
M

 D
A

M
A

G
ED

 T
R

EE
 F

R
O

M
 F

EN
C

E
3

,2
0

0
.0

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
4

A
P

LA
W

TO
N

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

SC
H

O
O

LS
M

SH
D

A
 2

0
2

1
3

,1
7

7
.1

8

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
5

A
P

M
A

R
IL

YN
 R

. C
H

R
IS

TE
N

SE
N

, L
LP

, N
C

P
P

SY
C

H
O

LO
G

IC
A

L 
A

SS
ES

SM
EN

T 
 -

P
R

E 
EM

P
LO

YM
EN

5
0

0
.0

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
6

A
P

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

H
EA

LT
H

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
G

R
O

U
P

 ID
 7

9
4

8
2

4
7

,1
7

0
.9

7

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
7

A
P

P
R

O
G

R
ES

SI
V

E 
A

E
P

R
O

JE
C

T:
 9

0
0

5
0

0
3

.0
 M

A
ST

ER
 P

LA
N

2
,5

4
0

.0
0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
8

A
P

R
EP

U
B

LI
C

  S
ER

V
IC

ES
 O

F
W

A
ST

E 
R

EM
O

V
A

L
1

5
0

.0
0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

6
9

A
P

SH
A

R
E 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TI

O
N

G
O

O
D

 G
R

A
P

E 
- 

5
G

A
L

5
7

5
.7

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
0

A
P

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
M

IC
H

IG
A

N
M

SH
D

A
 2

0
2

1
: S

ET
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

TR
IC

1
1

,7
0

1
.6

9

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
1

A
P

TA
YL

O
R

 S
H

A
N

N
O

N
P

A
R

K
 R

EN
TA

L 
R

EF
U

N
D

 
1

5
.0

0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
2

A
P

TH
E 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
LI

FE
 IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E 

A
C

C
T 

N
O

 0
0

 1
6

8
0

5
1

 0
0

0
1

8
9

1
.7

2

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
3

A
P

TR
A

C
E 

A
N

A
LY

TI
C

A
L 

LA
B

O
R

A
TO

R
IE

S,
 IN

C
P

FA
S 

- 
B

IO
SO

LI
D

S 
- 

EG
LE

 L
IS

T
4

1
0

.0
0

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
4

A
P

V
A

N
 B

U
R

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

M
SH

D
A

 2
0

2
1

2
,4

3
2

.6
6

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
5

A
P

V
A

N
 B

U
R

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

 IS
D

M
SH

D
A

 2
0

2
1

2
,2

6
6

.0
3

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
6

A
P

V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

M
O

B
IL

E 
P

H
O

N
E 

| 
TA

B
LE

TS
3

2
1

.4
1

0
7

/2
9

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

5
7

7
7

A
P

W
IG

H
TM

A
N

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

- 
2

2
4

0
0

9
 G

EN
ER

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
3

,1
9

0
.0

0

0
7

/0
8

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

D
D

5
2

8
9

(A
)

P
R

P
ay

ro
ll 

To
ta

l
3

2
,3

2
0

.6
6

0
7

/2
2

/2
0

2
2

G
EN

D
D

5
3

0
8

(A
)

P
R

P
ay

ro
ll 

To
ta

l
4

2
,3

9
2

.8
0

To
ta

l o
f 

1
2

4
 C

h
e

ck
s:

1
5

5
,8

0
0

.0
4

Le
ss

 5
 C

h
e

ck
s 

V
o

id
e

d
:

0
.0

0

To
ta

l o
f 

1
1

9
 D

is
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
:

1
5

5
,8

0
0

.0
4



VILLAGE OF LAWTON 
COUNTY OF VAN BUREN 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-2022 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER #02-22 

AUTHORIZING “NO STOPPING, STANDING OR PARKING” SIGNS BETWEEN THE 

HOURS OF 7:30 AM AND 3:30 PM ON SCHOOL DAYS” ON THE NORTH SIDE OF E. 

SECOND STREET FROM NURSERY STREET TO QUINCY STREET 

 

At a regular meeting of the Village Council for the Village of Lawton, Michigan, held in the Lawton 

Village Hall in Lawton, Michigan, on the 9th day of August 2022, at 7:00 p.m.  
 

 PRESENT:   

 ABSENT:     
 

The following Resolution was offered by Councilperson ____________________ and supported by 

Councilperson __________________. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the Uniform Traffic Code allows for placement of “No Stopping, Standing or Parking 

Signs” under section 257.606 and 257.71 of the Michigan Vehicle Code, Act 300 of 1949 et al.; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lawton Police Chief has responded to concerns regarding traffic and parking 

near the elementary school and is recommending Traffic Control Order #02-22; and 

WHEREAS, Traffic Control Order #02-22 provides that “No Stopping, Standing or Parking Signs 

between the hours of 7:30 am and 3:30 pm on school days” will be placed on the north side of E. 

Second St. from Nursery Street to Quincy Street; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of these signs will be to provide greater visibility for school children crossing 

E. Second Street and to facilitate a smooth traffic flow during school drop-off times; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Village Council does hereby authorize the Police Chief 

to issue Traffic Control Order #02-22, of which it will become effective immediately upon 

signage placement; and 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any previous traffic control orders 

conflicting with Traffic Control Order #02 - 22 are hereby rescinded and superseded. 

THIS RESOLUTION is hereby ___________________ by roll call vote: 

 

YEAS: Council Members:   

NAYS: Council Members:   

ABSTAIN: Council Members:  

ABSENT: Council Members:   

 

ADOPTED this 9th day of  August 2022 
 

      VILLAGE OF LAWTON 
 

      BY:         
           Josh Appleby, Village President  
     

      BY:       
                  Brittany Rathbun, Village Clerk 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Brittany Rathbun, the duly appointed Clerk of the Village of Lawton, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted by the Lawton Village Council at a 

regular meeting held August 9, 2022, in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 267 of the 

Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, the minutes of the meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required by said Act.                                                              
 

      VILLAGE OF LAWTON 

 
 

BY:       
                  Brittany Rathbun, Village Clerk 































Village of Lawton 
Van Buren County, Michigan 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended February 28, 2022 

DRAFT



Village of Lawton 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 
Our discussion and analysis of the Village of Lawton’s (the Village) financial performance provides a narrative overview of the 
Village’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the Village’s financial 
statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The Village’s total net position increased by $259,977 (3 percent) as a result of this year’s activities. Net position of the 
governmental activities increased by $271,918 and net position of the business‐type activities decreased by $11,941. 

 Of the $10,627,916 total net position reported, $1,928,811  (18 percent)  is available to be used to meet the Village’s 
ongoing  obligations  to  its  citizens  and  customers,  without  constraints  established  by  debt  covenants,  enabling 
legislation, or other legal requirements. 

 The  General  Fund’s  unassigned  fund  balance  at  the  end  of  the  fiscal  year  was  $1,512,109,  which  represents 
160 percent of the actual total General Fund expenditures for the current fiscal year. 

 
Overview of the financial statements 
 
The Village’s annual report is comprised of four parts: management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, 
and  required  supplementary  information  and  an optional  section  that presents  additional  information.  The basic  financial 
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the Village: 
 

 The  first  two  statements  are  government‐wide  financial  statements  that  provide  both  long‐term  and  short‐term 
information about the Village’s overall financial status. 

 The  remaining  statements  are  fund  financial  statements  that  focus  on  individual  parts  of  the  Village  government, 
reporting the Village’s operations in more detail than the government‐wide financial statements. 
o Governmental funds statements explain how government services,  like general government, public safety, and 

public works, were financed in the short‐term, as well as what remains for future spending. 
o Proprietary  funds  statements  offer  short‐term  and  long‐term  financial  information  about  the  activities  the 

government operates like a business and include the Village’s sewer and water systems. 
 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more 
detailed  data.  The  financial  statements  are  followed  by  a  section  of  required  supplementary  information  and  other 
supplementary information that further explain and support the information in the financial statements. 
 
A comparative analysis of the government‐wide financial statements for 2022 and 2021 is also presented. 
 
Government‐wide financial statements 
 
The government‐wide financial statements report information about the Village as a whole using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private‐sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Village’s assets and liabilities. All 
of  the  current  year’s  revenues  and  expenses  are  accounted  for  in  the  Statement of Activities,  regardless of when  cash  is 
received or paid. 
 
The two government‐wide statements report the Village’s net position and how  it has changed. Net position (the difference 
between the Village’s assets and liabilities) is one way to measure the Village’s financial health, or position. 
 

 Over time, increases or decreases in the Village’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving 
or deteriorating, respectively. 

 To assess the overall health of the Village, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors, such as changes  in the 
Village’s property tax base and the condition of the Village’s capital assets. 

 
 
 
 

‐5‐ 

DRAFT



Village of Lawton 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 
The government‐wide financial statements of the Village are divided into three categories: 
 

 Governmental  activities  ‐ Most  of  the  Village’s  basic  services  are  included  here,  such  as  public  safety  and  general 
government. Property taxes and state grants finance most of these activities. 

 Business‐type activities ‐ The Village charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it provides. The 
Village’s water and sewer system is reported here. 

 Component unit ‐ The Village  includes  in  its report the Downtown Development Authority. Although  legally separate, 
this “component unit” is important because the Village is financially accountable for them. 

 
Fund financial statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Village’s most significant funds ‐ not the Village as 
a whole. Funds are accounting devices  that  the Village uses  to keep  track of  specific  sources of  funding and  spending  for 
particular purposes. 
 

 Some funds are required by state law. 

 The Village Council establishes other  funds  to control and manage money  for particular purposes or  to show  that  it  is 
properly using certain taxes and other revenues (like motor fuel taxes collected for the street funds). 

 
The Village has two types of funds: 
 

 Governmental funds. Most of the Village’s basic services are included in its governmental funds, which focus on (1) how 
cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flows in and out, and (2) the balances left at year 
end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short‐term 
view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance  the Village’s programs. Because  this  information does not encompass  the additional  long‐term  focus of  the 
government‐wide statements, we provide additional information that explains the relationship between them. 

 

 Proprietary funds. Services for which the Village charges customers a fee are generally reported  in proprietary funds. 
Proprietary funds statements,  like the government‐wide statements, provide both  long‐term and short‐term financial 
information. 
o The Village’s  enterprise  fund  (one  type  of proprietary  fund)  is  the  same  as  its  business‐type  activities  but 

provides more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. 
o The Village uses an internal service fund (the other type of proprietary fund) to report activities that provide 

services  for  the  Village’s  other  programs  and  activities.  The  Village’s  internal  service  fund  manages  the 
Village’s fleet of vehicles and equipment. 

 
Component unit 
 
The Downtown Development Authority, although  legally separate,  is  included  in the Village’s financial report because the 
Village  is  financially accountable  for  it. The Downtown Development Authority  (DDA) was also  created by  the Village  to 
capture property taxes from certain taxing units from a specific district within the Village to finance public improvements to 
that district. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‐6‐ 

DRAFT



Village of Lawton 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE 
 
Net position 
Total net position at  the end of  the  fiscal year was $10,627,916. Of  this  total, $6,161,221  is  invested  in  capital assets and 
$2,537,884 is restricted for various purposes. Consequently, unrestricted net position was $1,928,811. 
 

   

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Current and other assets 4,004,484$  3,451,756$  809,355$      715,780$      4,813,839$    4,167,536$   

Capital  assets 2,359,109     2,568,461     5,683,778     5,887,022     8,042,887      8,455,483     

Total  assets 6,363,593     6,020,217     6,493,133     6,602,802     12,856,726    12,623,019   

Current and other l iabil ities 257,574        186,116        89,570          84,298          347,144          270,414         

Long‐term debt ‐                 ‐                 1,881,666     1,984,666     1,881,666      1,984,666     

Total  l iabil ities 257,574        186,116        1,971,236     2,068,964     2,228,810      2,255,080     

Net position:    

Net investment in

capital  assets 2,359,109     2,568,461     3,802,112     3,902,356     6,161,221      6,470,817     

Restricted 2,287,214     2,035,369     250,670        189,835        2,537,884      2,225,204     

Unrestricted 1,459,696     1,230,271     469,115        441,647        1,928,811      1,671,918     

Total  net position 6,106,019$  5,834,101$  4,521,897$  4,533,838$  10,627,916$  10,367,939$ 

Condensed financial information

Net position

Governmental activities Business‐type activities Totals

 
 
Changes in net position 
The Village’s  total  revenues were $2,354,229  in  the current  fiscal year, compared  to $2,229,992  in 2021. Approximately 
34 percent of the Village’s revenues comes from property taxes, 33 percent comes from utility and other charges, and 22 
percent came from operating grants and contributions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‐7‐ 

DRAFT



Village of Lawton 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 
The cost of the Village’s programs totaled $2,094,252 in 2022, $180,524 more than last year. Approximately 32 percent of 
the Village’s 2022 expenses comes from providing water and sewer services. General government represents 12 percent. 
Public safety and public works account for 20 and 18 percent respectively, of the Village’s 2022 total expenses. 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Program revenues:

Charges  for services 114,797$         108,491$         656,871$         587,214$         771,668$          695,705$         

Operating grants  and    

contributions 505,298           515,305           ‐                    4,055                505,298             519,360            

General  revenues:

Property taxes 791,845           754,122           ‐                    ‐                    791,845             754,122            

State shared revenue 244,372           202,095           ‐                    ‐                    244,372             202,095            

Local  community stabilization    

share revenue 21,199             21,199             ‐                    ‐                    21,199               21,199              

Franchise fees 29,383             29,285             ‐                    ‐                    29,383               29,285              

Interest income 6,653                5,461                4,691                2,765                11,344               8,226                

Other (20,880)            ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    (20,880)              ‐                     

Total  revenues 1,692,667        1,635,958        661,562           594,034           2,354,229         2,229,992        

Expenses:

General  government 248,718           162,525           ‐                    ‐                    248,718             162,525            

Public safety 425,122           369,628           ‐                    ‐                    425,122             369,628            

Public works 387,396           357,234           ‐                    ‐                    387,396             357,234            

Recreation and culture 239,817           170,967           ‐                    ‐                    239,817             170,967            

Community and economic

development 119,696           161,572           ‐                    ‐                    119,696             161,572            

Sewer ‐                    ‐                    359,561           351,606           359,561             351,606            

Water ‐                    ‐                    313,942           340,196           313,942             340,196            

Total  expenses 1,420,749        1,221,926        673,503           691,802           2,094,252         1,913,728        

Changes  in net position 271,918           414,032           (11,941)            (97,768)            259,977             316,264            

Net position, end of year 6,106,019$     5,834,101$     4,521,897$     4,533,838$     10,627,916$     10,367,939$    

Condensed financial information

Changes in net position

Governmental activities Business‐type activities Totals

 
 
Governmental activities 
The governmental activities net position increased by $271,918 in the current year compared to a $414,032 increase in the 
prior  year.  Revenues  increased  by  $56,709,  primarily  due  to  increases  in  state  shared  revenue.  Expenses  increased  by 
$198,823, primarily due to increases in expenses in the Village’s general government and recreation and culture function, 
due to increased project costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‐8‐ 

DRAFT



Village of Lawton 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 
The total cost of governmental activities this year was $1,420,749. After subtracting the direct charges to those who directly 
benefited  from  the programs  ($114,797),  and operating  grants  and  contributions  ($505,298),  the  “public benefit” portion 
covered by property taxes, state revenue sharing, and other general revenues was $800,654. 
 
Business‐type activities 
Business‐type activities decreased  the Village’s net position by $11,941  in  the current year. Total  revenues  increased by 
$67,528,  as  rates were  increased.  Expenses  decreased  by  $18,299  in  the  current  year,  primarily  due  to  a  decrease  in 
engineering fees. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE’S FUNDS 
 
Governmental funds 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $3,617,118 
in 2022, an increase of $497,350 from the prior year. 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Village. At the end of the fiscal year, its fund balance was $1,522,510, 
an increase of $233,972, as revenues of $1,176,660 exceeded expenditures of $942,688. 
 
The Major Street Fund experienced an increase in its fund balance of $159,917 during the fiscal year, as revenues of $223,775 
exceeded operating  and maintenance  costs of $63,858  in  the  current  year.  The Major  Street  Fund has  a  fund balance of 
$896,615, which is restricted for street preservation. 
 
The Municipal Streets Fund had a $38,588 increase in its fund balance, as revenues of $252,652 exceeded street maintenance 
expenditures of $185,064 and a transfer out of $29,000. The Municipal Streets Fund has a fund balance of $341,711, which is 
restricted for public works. 
 
The  Library  Fund had  a $30,229  increase  in  its  fund balance,  as  revenues of $186,776 were higher  than  library operating 
expenditures of $156,547. The Library Fund has a fund balance of $634,649, which is restricted for library operations. 
 
Proprietary funds 
 
The Sewer Fund experienced an operating gain of $18,830 as user fees covered all current year operating costs. However, 
during the current year interest expense of $22,495 decreased net position, so that net position decreased by $1,320. Total 
net position was $2,380,510 at year end, which included an unrestricted net position of $102,455. 
 
The Water Fund experienced an operating gain of $13,850 and net position decreased by $10,621 because user charges do 
not  fully  cover  operating  and  financing  expenses.  Net  position  was  $2,141,387  at  year  end,  of  which  $366,660  is 
unrestricted. 
 
General Fund budgetary highlights 
 
The Village amended the General Fund budget during the current fiscal year to  increase total expenditures by $154,838.  
General  government  expenditures were  increased  by  $14,371  and  community  and  economic  development  costs were 
increased by $62,375 for increased costs for planning and zoning. 
 
Revenues were $27,932 higher  than anticipated. Expenditures were $76,828  less  than  the amounts appropriated, as all 
functions were  under  budget  in  2022.  The  actual  increase  in  fund  balance  of  $233,972 was  $104,760 more  than  the 
anticipated increase of $129,212. 
 
 
 
 

‐9‐ 

DRAFT



Village of Lawton 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets 
The Village’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business‐type activities as of February 28, 2022, amounts 
to $8,042,887, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment includes a broad range of assets, including land, buildings, 
equipment, and sewer and water  infrastructure. The decrease  in the Village’s  investment  in capital assets for the current 
fiscal  year was  $412,596, which  includes  $219,229  in  additions  reduced  by  $417,125  in  depreciation  and  $214,700  in 
disposed assets. 
 
The major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the following: 

 $20,315 for library books 

 $76,060 for improvements to a Village building 

 $36,326 for improvements to Village roads 
 
More  detailed  information  about  the  Village’s  capital  assets  is  presented  in  Note 5  of  the  notes  to  the  basic  financial 
statements. 
 
Debt 
At the end of the fiscal year, the Village had $1,881,666  in outstanding obligations, reflecting a $103,000 decrease during 
the year due to principal payments. 
 
Other noncurrent obligations, in the amount of $66,500, represent accrued compensated absences. 
 
More detailed information about the Village’s long‐term liabilities is presented in Note 7 of the notes to the basic financial 
statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
The Village’s General Fund budget  for the next year  is set so that revenues are expected to exceed expenditures, with a 
decrease in general government spending. Major revenues, including taxes and state grants, will not increase significantly in 
the foreseeable future. Water rates will remain stable and sewer rates will increase during the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
CONTACTING THE VILLAGE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview 
of the Village’s finances and to demonstrate the Village’s accountability for the resources it receives. Questions regarding any 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 
 

Lisa Imus, Village Manager  Phone: (269) 624‐6407 
Village of Lawton 
125 South Main Street 
Lawton, MI 49065 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‐10‐ 

DRAFT



 
PUBLIC SERVICES REPORT 

 July 2022 
 

CEMETERY 
1) We had 3 interments in the month of March  
    Hours for the month – 168    Overtime – 2 
 
MOTORPOOL 
1) General maintenance was performed on equipment 
  
    Hours for the Month – 8 Overtime – 0 
 
BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 
1) No activity other than general maintenance 
    Hours for the month – 6 Overtime – 0 
 
CIVIC ACTIVITIES 
1) hours are from setting up for summerfest 
    Hours for the month - 68 
 
PARKS 
1) General maintenance and cleanup was performed.  
    Hours for the month – 86 Overtime – 9  
 
STREETS & SIDEWALKS 
1) no activity other than general maintenance 
 
 

Hours for the month 
Major Preservation – 11   Local Preservation – 17 

Major winter Maint. –   Local winter Maint. –  
Streets (not act 51) – 193  Sidewalks – 0 

 
Vacation hours – 56  Sick time – 10 

 
 
 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 
     
        Todd Hackenberg 
        Superintendent of Public Works 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS REPORT 

July 2022 

 

1)  14,700,000 Gallons of water were pumped during the month compared to 13,488,000 in 
2021. 

2) The average daily usage was 474,193 gallons. 

3) Routine sampling was done with all samples being non-detect. 

4) Water has had its 5-yr. inspection, and we are awaiting the report  

5) Total hours for the month:  Water – 80 Overtime – 16 

   Sewer – 171 Overtime – 16 

 
 
 
 

Village of Lawton WWTP 
 

Operational Report – August 3, 2022 
 
Wastewater Treatment 

 
• In July a total of 2.60 million gallons of treated wastewater was discharged into the 

tributary to the South Branch of the Paw Paw River. The daily effluent flows averaged 
84,000 gallons per day, which is approximately 34% of the hydraulic capacity of the plant. 

 
Regulatory Matters 
 

• The Discharge Monitoring Report for July has been electronically submitted to the MDEQ. 
 

Land Application Program             
 

• 1000 gallons of  activated sludge was pumped over to the sludge storage tank. 



 
LAWTON POLICE DEPARTMENT – COUNCIL REPORT 

JULY 2022 
 

Calls for Service/Complaints------------------95 

Ordinance complaints------ -------------------10  

   Blight (1)        Zoning (4)      Misc. (5) 

Traffic stops---------------------------------------23 

  Citations issued (5)  Verbal warnings (13) 

Arrests-----------------------------------------------6 

Accidents------------------- ------------------------0  

Parking citations------------------------ ----------0 

HOURS WORKED:    Scheduled (Full-time)   455.5 

     Scheduled (Part-time)   0 
     Overtime hours                25 
     Vacation hours                 80 
     Sick leave hours   0  
 
COMMUNITY POLICING: 

Officers made (37) field contacts and (26) business contacts. 

NOTABLE INCIDENTS: 

Lawton PD executed a search warrant for a subject who had a bench warrant for failing to appear in 
court and another warrant for probation violation.  Forcible entry was made to the residence.  The 
subject resisted arrest and was charged with Resisting & Obstructing (R/O).  During the arrest, a small 
amount of meth was also located.  The subject was lodged at the VBC jail on multiple charges. 

Lawton PD was made aware of a subject traveling through the Village with an uncased rifle, based on a 
video that was posted on social media.  The next day, the subject was contacted in Chancy Lewis Park.  
An AR-15 rifle w/ (2) magazines was seized for improper transportation.  A case was submitted to the 
Prosecutor’s Office for review, requesting charges against (3) individuals. 

ADDITIONAL: 

For the month of July, Lawton officers spent many hours of directed traffic patrol, specifically targeting 
speed violations.  The number of hours spent in the following locations is as follows: 

7.42 hours – Main St.  
7.58 hours – All other areas within the Village  
Total hours – 15 
 
LPD had 14 (Assist other agency calls): 4 medical/ambulance call in the Village and 1 in Antwerp Twp., 5 
assist calls in Porter Twp., 2 in Antwerp Twp. and 2 within the Village. 

Respectfully, 

Chief Jeffrey Mack 



Van Buren County File Class / Section Report
Number Sub-Beat Date Offense Location OfficerIncident Code-Type

22-0543 LAWTON-1 07/11/2022 ZONING ORDINANCE 153.01 Zoning
ordinance 153.01

Bitely --  Main
Street

Edwards, D.-

22-0544 80-41 07/11/2022 ZONING ORDINANCE 153.01 Zoning
ordinance 153.01

Lawton
Elementary
School

Edwards, D.-

22-0564 LAWTON-1 07/18/2022 ZONING ORDINANCE 153.01 Zoning
ordinance 153.01

Village Of
Lawton

Largen, J.-

22-0574 LAWTON-1 07/21/2022 ZONING ORDINANCE 153.01 Zoning
ordinance 153.01

342 Nursery
Street

Mack, J.-

22-0596 LAWTON-1 07/28/2022 BLIGHT ORDINANCE  93.01 Blight
Ordinance 93.01

131 Walker
Street

Mack, J.-

Total: 5

Junk Auto Open

Side yard parking Veh. moved

Signs in ROW Removed

Signs in ROW Removed

Signs in ROW Removed/Returned




